
 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

Rye City Planning Commission Minutes 
December 14, 2010 

 
MEETING ATTENDANCE:  
Planning Commission Members: Other: 

 Barbara Cummings, Chair   Christian K. Miller, AICP, City Planner 
 Martha Monserrate, Vice-Chair  JoAnn Rispoli, Secretary 
 Carolyn Cunningham  Lori DeCaro, CC/AC Chair 
 Nick Everett   
 Hugh Greechan         
 Peter Jovanovich        
 Peter Larr        

    
I. HEARINGS 1 
 2 
1. Wainwright House (continued) 3 
 4 
 Clifford Davis (applicant’s attorney) stated that the applicant is seeking site plan 5 

approval per section 197-7 of the City Code, use permitted subject to additional 6 
standards and requirements approval per section 197-10 and wetland permit 7 
approval for 373 square feet of encroachment into the wetland buffer in connection 8 
with the installation of seasonal tents at Wainwright House. 9 

 10 
 Mr. Davis requested that all information provided in his December 3, 2010 11 

submission to the Planning Commission be made part of the record.  In that 12 
submission he noted that Contadino Architects testified that the tents do not impact 13 
the architectural significance of the building.  Mr. Davis stated that Adler Consulting 14 
prepared a report showing the tented events do not have an adverse traffic impact.  15 
The December 3 submission also included a letter from Peter Cole (sound 16 
consultant) regarding mitigation measures to reduce noise impacts from the tent.  17 
Mr. Davis added that the applicant submitted an affidavit from the current Wainwright 18 
House President, Carol Craig. 19 

 20 
 Mr. Davis stated that, as previously stated, the applicant is willing to impose 21 

reasonable restrictions on the use of the tents.  He noted that currently all weddings 22 
are stopped by 11:00 PM and that each event is required to hire an off-duty Rye 23 
Police officer who can ask that music be turned down at any time.  He noted that 24 
Wainwright House requires that buses be used for any wedding having more than 80 25 
participants in order to reduce traffic and parking demands.  Mr. Davis stated that 26 
Wainwright House also has an overflow parking reciprocity agreement with 27 
Shenorock Shore Club and Coveleigh Club.   28 

 29 
 Mr. Davis stated that the applicant’s consulting traffic engineer witnessed traffic 30 

patterns associated with a November 6 wedding and observed no significant 31 
adverse traffic impact.  He stated that the mitigation measures proposed in the 32 
report prepared by Mr. Cole could reduce sound impacts by 40%. 33 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 2 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

 1 
 Mr. Davis stated that the applicant is a religious institution and that Federal laws 2 

protecting its operation must be respected.  He stated that the Commission must 3 
exercise a balancing act between the findings the Commission is required to make 4 
under the City Code and potential conditions or restrictions that might unreasonably 5 
impact Wainwright’s use. 6 

 7 
 Mr. Davis stated that 25 weddings have already been booked for 2011 and 8 

requested that the Commission not impose restrictions or conditions that would 9 
impact these previously scheduled weddings.  He stated that Wainwright House 10 
made these contractual commitments before the Commission application process 11 
was underway. 12 

 13 
 Mr. Davis stated that in addition to weddings Wainwright House expects to hold nine 14 

other tented events in 2011 including the 60th Anniversary celebration for Wainwright 15 
House in May, a book signing, summer solstice celebration, YMCA counselor 16 
training in July, a science event in July, a healing arts fair in August, a garden club 17 
event, autumn fundraiser and the helping hands fundraiser in September.  Mr. Davis 18 
requested that these events not be impacted by any Planning Commission 19 
conditions or restrictions. 20 

 21 
 Mr. Davis stated that Wainwright House would consent to a restriction that limited 22 

the number of tented wedding events to 25 a year.  He stated that this number of 23 
weddings is necessary to support Wainwright’s continued operation.   24 

 25 
 Mr. Davis noted that the application for the seasonal tents requires a coastal 26 

consistency determination from the Planning Commission.  He stated that an 27 
additional notice of hearing reflecting this required approval would be circulated to 28 
area neighbors as required by law. 29 

 30 
 Carol Craig stated that she is the President of Wainwright House.  She noted that 31 

Wainwright House is a religious space for spiritual exploration.  Ms. Craig listed the 32 
prior speakers at Wainwright House.  She stated that Wainwright has struggled 33 
financially since the decline of its endowment in the early 1990s.  She noted that the 34 
weddings are necessary to fund capital improvements to the Wainwright facilities, 35 
which require repair.  She also noted that the weddings will also build up the 36 
endowment. 37 

 38 
 Ms. Craig stated that Wainwright is invaluable to the community and provides a 39 

number of services.  She stated that Wainwright wants to be a good neighbor and 40 
that she is only aware of three complaints regarding noise last summer.  She added 41 
that implementing the recommendations of the sound consultant will further reduce 42 
noise.   43 

 44 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 3 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

 Ms. Craig stated that the Wainwright needs the ancillary wedding functions to fund 1 
its programs.  She stated that Wainwright could consent to a restriction that limits 2 
annual tent use to 25 weddings plus nine non-wedding events.  She stated that 3 
because of contractual commitments for weddings already booked for 2011 the 4 
restrictions should not become effective until 2012. 5 

 6 
 Michael O’Rourke, P.E. (applicant’s traffic engineer) provided an overview of his 7 

experience and background in traffic engineering.  He stated that he conducted a 8 
review of traffic operations for a wedding held at Wainwright on Saturday, November 9 
6, 2010.  He noted that the wedding was attended by 232 guests and 40 staff.  He 10 
noted that traffic levels of service at area intersections were not adversely impacted, 11 
including the Oakland Beach Avenue/Milton Road intersection and on Stuyvesant 12 
Avenue.  He noted that most guests arrived to the wedding by bus.  The first bus 13 
that arrived at Wainwright stopped to discharge passengers too close to the site 14 
access causing temporary vehicle que onto Stuyvesant Avenue.  The second bus 15 
pulled further into the site resulting in no vehicle delays.  He noted that 47 vehicles 16 
parked on the property without problems and there was no off-site parking on 17 
Stuyvesant Avenue. 18 

 19 
 Peter Cole (applicant’s sound/acoustical consultant) provided the Commission with 20 

his professional background and acoustical experience.  He noted that he is on the 21 
staff of SUNY’s Performing Arts Center.  He summarized his Report on the sound 22 
proofing measures taken at Wainwright House, submitted to the Planning 23 
Commission.  He stated that Wainwright can expand the existing extent of plexi-24 
glass walls at the tent perimeter and use heavy drapes to dampen and reduce noise 25 
levels.  He recommended that Wainwright purchase its own sound system to better 26 
control noise levels of amplified music.  Wainwright would have better control over 27 
noise levels.  Mr. Cole recommended increasing the number of speakers within the 28 
tent to allow for a better distribution of amplified sound throughout the tent at lower 29 
sound levels.  He concluded by noting that his recommendations could reduce 30 
estimated sound levels by 40 percent. 31 

 32 
 John Carey (860 Forest Avenue resident) stated that the Planning Commission has 33 

received many letters from area neighbors noting objection to the application and 34 
conducting wedding receptions at the property.  He stated that the Planning 35 
Commission is being asked to grant use and area variances to allow the 36 
continuation of weddings and receptions.  He stated that the activities within the 37 
seasonal tents are not religious and are not permitted.  He noted that the facility has 38 
become the “Arrowwood on the Sound”, which is not permitted by the City Zoning 39 
Code.  Mr. Carey stated that the tents also encroach within the rear yard setback, 40 
which is not allowed by the City Zoning Code. 41 

 42 
 Mr. Carey stated that Wainwright House’s activities make it a taxable property.  He 43 

stated that it should not have tax exempt status and that such status should be 44 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 4 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

revoked by the City Assessor and placed on the City’s tax roll in 2011.  He stated 1 
that he is investigating this matter. 2 

 3 
 Mr. Carey stated that Wainwright House should also pay the City’s Hotel Occupancy 4 

tax for the rooms it rents. 5 
 6 
 Mary Mundinger (200 Stuyvesant Avenue resident) stated that she has been a 7 

resident at her property for 40 years.  She said that over that time the neighborhood 8 
has changed.  She stated that the activities at Wainwright have changed over the 9 
years and that the noise and traffic associated with weddings at Wainwright are 10 
objectionable.  She noted that Wainwright did not need weddings to supplement its 11 
income during the economic downturn of the 1970s.  She stated that Wainwright 12 
should not be allowed to raise money by holding weddings that impact the 13 
neighborhood.  She stated that guests of Wainwright do park on Stuyvesant Avenue 14 
contrary to statements made by the applicant that they do not. 15 

 16 
 Warren Keegan (210 Stuyvesant Avenue resident) stated that he was on the board 17 

of Wainwright for 6 or 7 years in the 1980s.  He stated that at time Wainwright had 18 
over 100 volunteers.  He stated that when he was on the board the charges for 19 
events supported Wainwright financially.   20 

 21 
 Mr. Keegan stated that Wainwright is an asset to the community and should be 22 

preserved.  He stated that it has become a “wedding palace masquerading as a 23 
religious use.”  He stated that the wedding activities should not be permitted 24 
because of the impact on neighboring properties.  He noted that sound from the 25 
weddings can be heard well beyond Milton Point to other parts of the City.  He stated 26 
that Wainwright has not succeeded in being a good neighbor.  The loud music is 27 
disruptive and Wainwright’s central mission of meditation has been lost.  28 

 29 
 Mr. Keegan stated that some in the community want to see Wainwright become 30 

exclusively residential, which he stated would be “sad”.  He stated that the practice 31 
of raising money through wedding activities should be stopped.  He suggested that 32 
Wainwright return to the practice of offering lower cost activities and a lower budget. 33 

 34 
 Amy Reisner (720 Milton Road resident) stated that she has been a Rye resident for 35 

16 years.  She stated that she is a nurse and has led healing and meditation 36 
programs at Wainwright.  She stated that the Wainwright is an asset to Rye and is a 37 
spiritual center providing holistic healing programs.  She stated that there is more 38 
traffic on Stuyvesant Avenue between May and October associated with the area 39 
clubs and parties held at clubs at the end of Stuyvesant Avenue than the traffic  40 
associated with activities at Wainwright House.   41 

 42 
 Melinda Martin stated that she is a physiotherapist and stated her support for 43 

Wainwright House.  Ms. Martin provides programming at Wainwright and considers it 44 
a healing spiritual center.  She noted the programs she has offered at Wainwright 45 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

including a Workshop in June 2008 for Emotional Freedom Techniques (EFT) and 1 
programs to support healing for veterans suffering from PTSD. 2 

 3 
 Dr. Michael Basso stated he was a Harrison, NY resident and frequent user of 4 

Wainwright.  He stated that he first became familiar with Wainwright in the 1970s as 5 
part of his interest in eastern studies.  He stated that he has received 11 degrees 6 
from 7 colleges and enjoys Wainwright’s programs addressing bio-psychological 7 
models, meditation, energy healing and stress management. 8 

 9 
 Ben Rosenstadt (220 Stuyvesant Avenue resident) stated that he has lived at his 10 

property since his parents moved there in 1963.  He stated that how Wainwright 11 
finances its operations is not a concern for the Planning Commission.  He stated that 12 
the Planning Commission is responsible for addressing land use impacts associated 13 
with running what he considered a commercial use in a residential area.  He stated 14 
that Wainwright is not a center for spiritual healing, but a club with traffic impacts on 15 
the neighborhood.  He stated that Wainwright does not pay taxes and that the 16 
seasonal tents require variances and wetland permits should not be approved.  He 17 
stated that he grew up with Wainwright and it was not as objectionable a neighbor as 18 
it has become.  He stated that he would prefer residential “McMansions” at the 19 
property rather than Wainwright. 20 

 21 
 22 
ACTION: Peter Larr made a motion, seconded by Nick Everett that the Planning 23 

Commission continue the public hearing on wetland permit application 24 
number WP280 and modified final site plan and use permitted subject to 25 
additional standards and requirements application number SP317, which 26 
was carried by the following vote: 27 
 28 
Barbara Cummings, Chair:   Aye 29 
Martha Monserrate, Vice- Chair:  Aye 30 
Carolyn Cunningham:   Aye 31 
Nick Everett:     Aye 32 
Hugh Greechan:    Absent 33 
Peter Jovanovich    Aye 34 
Peter Larr:     Aye 35 

 36 
II. ITEMS PENDING ACTION 37 
 38 
1. Wainwright House 39 
 40 
 The Commission stated that based on the opinion of the City Planner the temporary, 41 

tents should be considered structures that are not exempt actions under SEQRA.  42 
The Commission stated that the action is therefore considered a “Unlisted” action 43 
under SEQRA.  Since the action was subject to SEQRA it was also subject to 44 
Chapter 73, Coastal Zone Management.  The Commission requested that the 45 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 6 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

applicant provide the required application form for its consideration to reflect the 1 
required coastal consistency approval. 2 

 3 
 The Commission reviewed the information from the applicant regarding the number 4 

of tented events Wainwright has conducted since 1999.  The Commission stated 5 
that the applicant needs to supplement this information to include both wedding and 6 
non-wedding tented events.  The Commission also noted that there appeared to be 7 
a typo regarding the events held in 2010.  Cliff Davis (applicant’s attorney) stated 8 
that he would provide the additional information requested by the Commission. 9 

 10 
 Mr. Davis stated that the purpose of the weddings is to build up the endowment that 11 

has been declining since the loss of the Fonrose endowment.  He stated that many 12 
previous programs were not well managed financially and that there was little 13 
investment to maintain the facility and its capital needs.  He stated that recent 14 
funding has been used to rehabilitate the facility and fewer capital expenses are 15 
expected in the near future. 16 

 17 
 The Commission discussed whether Wainwright would be providing a financial plan 18 

for Wainwright.  The plan might include more detailed information regarding prior 19 
and future anticipated capital improvements. 20 

 21 
 The Commission reviewed the figures on the number of tented events and noted a 22 

significant increase since 2006.  The Commission noted that significantly fewer 23 
events were conducted in the tent in the past and that fewer events would be more 24 
consistent with the surrounding land use character.   25 

 26 
 The Commission discussed the noise mitigation measures proposed in the report 27 

prepared by Peter Cole.  The Commission noted that these measures could reduce 28 
sound impacts by 40%, but questioned the methodology used to reach that 29 
conclusion and the credentials of Mr. Cole.  The Commission noted that most of the 30 
objections from area neighbors are related to amplified noise.  The Commission 31 
discussed potentially restricting or eliminating amplified noise as a condition of 32 
conducting tented events. 33 

 34 
 The Commission responded to comments raised in the public hearing regarding 35 

Wainwright’s a religious use and property tax status.  The Commission stated that by 36 
law the Building Inspector determines whether a use is permitted and had 37 
determined that such a use is permitted.  The Commission is not responsible for the 38 
property tax status of Wainwright.  That is the responsibility of the City Assessor. 39 

 40 
 The Commission requested that it be provided with guidance from Corporation 41 

Counsel regarding what factors it should consider in its decision-making process for 42 
applications involving religious institutions.  43 

 44 



Rye City Planning Commission Minutes (Cont.) 
December 14, 2010 
Page 7 of 7 
 

 
f:\new planner 2001\minutes\2010 pc minutes\12 14 10 pcminutes.doc 

2. 464 Forest Avenue 1 
 2 
 Steve Secon (applicant’s architect) stated that the project would involve enclosing a 3 

portion of an existing open arcade in front of the building.  He stated that the 4 
applicant needs additional floor area to accommodate the needs of pharmacy 5 
patients, which require more space for private consultation pursuant to recent 6 
federal health privacy requirements. 7 

 8 
 Mr. Secon stated that to comply with the City’s parking requirements, eight off-site 9 

parking spaces would be provided.  These would include private residences in the 10 
area that have agreed to allow employee parking in their driveways.  The 11 
Commission stated that it could not approve such arrangements.  They noted that it 12 
was impractical to enforce and that after approval existing or new owners of the 13 
residences could choose to discontinue allowing parking on their property. 14 

 15 
 The property owner stated that as part of the original 1974 approval parking was 16 

permitted on the adjacent Playland Parkway property.  He stated that the proposed 17 
addition is very small and that it would not result in a significant increase in parking 18 
demand.  He stated that there is not currently a parking problem at the site.  The 19 
Commission noted that it’s not clear that the applicant has the right to use the off-site 20 
parking on County property, but that if such parking were no longer permitted on-site 21 
parking would be inadequate.  The Commission stated that it could not consider the 22 
off-site parking towards meeting the applicant’s parking requirement. 23 

 24 
 The Commission questioned the second floor use of the building.  The applicant 25 

stated that the second floor is used as a compounding lab. 26 
 27 
 The Commission stated that the applicant should consider plan modifications to 28 

increase the number of on-site parking spaces.  The Commission also stated that a 29 
revised plan should be prepared that better uses existing space within the building 30 
requiring little or no building expansion.   31 


